NOTIFICATION TO ATTEND MEETING OF THE TRANSPORTATION SPC
TO BE HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, DAME STREET, DUBLIN 2.
ON WEDNESDAY 7 FEBRUARY 2018 AT 3.00 PM

AGENDA
WEDNESDAY 7 FEBRUARY 2018
PAGE
1

Minutes of meeting held on 22nd November, 2017

3-6

2

Copy of correspondence dated 21st September, 2017, 24th November, 2017 and
2nd January, 2018, with the Minister for Transport, Tourism and Sport, in relation
to clamp release fees for persistent parking offenders.

7 - 10

3

Luas Cross City - impact on traffic to date (presentation by Mr. Brendan O'Brien,
Acting Executive Manager (Traffic))

4

College Green update (verbal update)

5

Proposed Dublin City Council Special Speed Limit Bye-Laws 2018 (verbal update)

6

Stationless On-Street Bicycle Hire (verbal update)

7

Removal of abandoned bicycles - policy update

11 - 18

8

Pedestrian facilities improvements at St Margaret's Road/McKee Avenue and
Jamestown Road/Melville Road roundabouts - issue regarding funding referred to
the Transportation SPC by the North West Area Committee (report attached, plus
copy of original report submitted to the North West Area Committee meeting in
November, 2017)

19 - 26

9

Wheelchair availability in Dublin City

27 - 28

10

Minutes of Cycling and Walking Sub-Committee meeting held on 20th September,
2017

29 - 32

11

Motion submitted by Fine Gael Group (Motion attached)

33 - 34

12

Motion in the name of Councillor Frank Kennedy: "In light of the ever growing
practice of people using smartphones while walking (in particular sending texts
and reading emails and articles), which creates serious risks to health and safety
including that oblivious smartphone users could step onto oncoming traffic, be hit
by cars and bicycles, or walk into stationary objects, this Committee resolves that

Dublin City Council conducts an assessment of the ways in which it could (a)
encourage people not to engage in this practice and to be aware of the serious
consequences that it can cause, and (b) introduce safety measures to prevent
injuries and collisions."

Item No. 1

MINUTES OF MEETING OF THE TRANSPORTATION STRATEGIC POLICY
COMMITTEE HELD ON 22nd NOVEMBER, 2017, at 3.00 p.m.
IN COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, DUBLIN 2

ATTENDANCE:
SPC Members:
Cllr Ciarán Cuffe, Chairperson; Cllr Frank Kennedy, Cllr Teresa Keegan, Cllr Ciarán
O’Moore, Cllr Paddy Smyth, Cllr Paul Hand, Cllr. Kieran Binchy, Cllr Paddy McCartan,
Cllr Jane Horgan Jones, Cllr Larry O’Toole, Cllr Ray McHugh, Cllr Mannix Flynn.
Mr Keith Gavin, Irish Parking Association; Mr Richard Guiney, Dublin City Business
Improvement District t/a Dublin Town; Mr Martin Hoey, Public Participation Network;
Mr Colm Ryder, Dublin Cycling Campaign; Mr Frank Mulligan, Irish Road Haulage
Association; Ms Fiona Kelty, National Council for the Blind of Ireland.
Apologies: Non-Members: Cllr Ray McAdam
Dublin City Council Staff:
Mr Dick Brady, Assistant Chief Executive; Mr Brendan O’Brien, Acting Executive
Manager (Traffic); Mr Kevin Meade, Senior Executive Officer; Mr Frank Lambe,
Senior Executive Officer;
Ms. Mary Hussey, Senior Engineer, City Centre Projects; Mr Andy Walsh, Senior
Engineer, Transportation Operations; Mr Dermot Stevenson, a/Senior Executive
Engineer; Mr Derek Dixon, Project Engineer, Luas Cross City Liaison Office;
Ms Edel Kelly, Senior Executive Planner, Roads and Traffic; Ms Helen Smirnova,
Senior Executive Engineer, and Mr Neil O’Donoghue, Executive ITS Officer, Traffic
Management and Control.
Mr Leslie Moore, City Parks Superintendent.
Ms Esther Hickey, Administrative Officer; Ms Mary Boyle, Staff Officer;
Mr Fergal McKay, Assistant Staff Officer, Mr. Patrick Davis, Clerical Officer;
Mr Stephen Hickey, Senior Staff Officer.
National Transport Authority: Ms. Graínne Mackin, Communications Director, Luas Cross
City

Page 3

1. Minutes of meeting held on 27th September, 2017.
In relation to the Control of Stationless On-Street Bicycle Hire Bye-Laws
2017, Mr Dick Brady, Assistant Chief Executive, confirmed that the Bye-Laws
were adopted by the City Council and the Council is now working towards
preparation for the tendering process by the end of the year.
Minutes agreed.

8. Luas Cross City – verbal update
Ms Grainne Mackin, Communications Director, Luas Cross City, National
Transport Authority, gave a presentation on the Green Line which is due to
commence service from 9th December, 2017. A new city centre off-peak Leap
Card adult fare of 1 euro and childrens’ fare of 50 cent is intended to
encourage use. Seven 55 metre trams will be part of the operation from
February, 2018, and a further 8 such trams have been ordered. Ms Mackin
responded to Members’ queries. Cllr P. Hand will forward a number of driver
training and safety queries to Ms Mackin directly who will raise with Transdev.
In response to Councillor Ray McAdam, Mr Dick Brady, Assistant Chief
Executive, said that the commitment to restore coach parking on Western
Way to the pre-2014 level would be honoured.
Presentation by Ms Grainne Mackin, Communications Director, Luas
Cross City, noted. Members thanked all concerned for the delivery of
the Luas Cross City project on time and on budget.
2. Implementation of Public Realm Strategy – presentation by Mr Leslie
Moore, City Parks Superintendent
Mr Leslie Moore gave a presentation on the Public Realm Masterplan which
was launched in 2016. The core objective is to create a pedestrian friendly
city centre. The Implementation Plan comprises a 3 phase Implementation
Programme, in line with the Development Plan. The projects listed in the first
phase have funding in place and the Environment and Transportation
Department is preparing a schedule for their delivery. Mr Moore responded to
Members’ questions. Mr Dick Brady, Assistant Chief Executive, said that
updates on the implementation of the Public Realm Strategy and projects will
be brought to the Transportation SPC.
Presentation noted. Quarterly Project updates of the Public Realm
Strategy to be submitted to the Transportation SPC.
3. Review of Phases 1 and 2 of new 30 km/h Speed Limit Zones – presentation
Mr Dermot Stevenson, a/Senior Executive Engineer, gave a presentation on
the new 30 km/h speed limit zones in the city. Of 40 streets surveyed, 15
streets on the south side and 17 on the north side showed a reduction in
speed, with 8 streets showing an increase or no decrease in speeds. Overall
the City Council is encouraged by the results and, under Phase 3, Draft
Speed Limit Bye-Laws will be brought to the SPC in February, 2018. Under a
Behaviour and Attitude Study, of 400 respondents surveyed, 90% would
support the introduction of 30 km/h speed limits in other residential areas. Mr
Stevenson replied to Members’ questions. The use of 30km/h roundels
(street markings) is being considered at strategic locations within the 30 km/h
zones.
Presentation by Mr Dermot Stevenson, a/Senior Executive Engineer,
noted.
Page 4

4. Traffic Advisory Group update and Neighbourhood Traffic Schemes
Proposals Concept (verbal report with presentation)
Mr Andy Walsh, Senior Engineer, gave an update on the operation of the
Traffic Advisory Group process and how a range of changes are helping to
improve the system and shorten timelines for responses.
Presentation by Mr Andy Walsh, Senior Engineer, noted. In relation to
the development of the proposed Neighbourhood Traffic Schemes
concept, a workshop will be held with the Members in early 2018 to
determine how this would best work on an evidence-based approach.
5. Sustainable Deliveries Scheme (report and draft Bye-Laws attached)
Ms Mary Hussey, Senior Engineer, outlined the proposal for Bye-Laws to
regulate the operation of eco hubs for deliveries. Members expressed support
for the proposal and raised concerns as regards suitable locations for future
hubs, and how licenses would operate. The Chairperson said that it was a
tremendous potential to limit the number of petrol and diesel trucks on street.
Ms Hussey noted concerns and said that sites will be looked at carefully and
that a proliferation of hubs is not proposed. A further report on the proposed
Bye-Laws following the public consultation will be brought back to the
Committee.
Report, containing proposal to seek the approval of the City Council to
initiate the public consultation on the proposed Draft Dublin City
Council Control of on-street Sustainable Deliveries Eco Hub Bye-Laws
2018, noted.
6. City Centre Projects (verbal update)
Mr Brendan O’Brien, acting Executive Manager (Traffic) updated the
Committee on the current public consultation regarding the additional
information lodged with An Bord Pleanála in respect of College Green. A
comprehensive report on the North and South Quays traffic, and the impact
from the Luas Cross City service, will be brought to the next meeting of the
SPC. Mr O’Brien replied to Members’ questions. In response to Mr Keith
Gavin, Irish Parking Association, regarding the negative impact of the traffic
changes on the Quays on some of their members, Mr O’Brien said that no
data has been received as yet from any car park, although requested.
Report noted.
7. Request from AA Ireland for membership of the Transportation SPC (verbal
report)
Mr Dick Brady, Assistant Chief Executive, said that a request for membership
of the SPC has been received from AA Ireland. The City Council may by
resolution increase the membership of the SPC by three Members - two
Councillors and 1 sectoral Member. Mr Brady said that the membership of
AA Ireland would be beneficial to the workings of the Committee and he
would urge support of the request. Members expressed support for the
increase in the membership of the SPC.
The Transportation SPC agreed to an increase in the membership of the
Committee by three i.e. by two
Councillors
and one sectoral group, and
Page
5
recommended referral to the City Council for approval.

9. SPC Meeting dates 2018 for noting (schedule attached)
Noted

Motions
10. Motion in the name of Councillor Ciarán O’Moore (deferred from 27th
September, 2017, Transportation SPC meeting pending a report on the
issue):
“That the City Council change its policy of not providing double yellow lines on
corners simply because existing legislation already provides that cars are not
allowed to park 5m from the corner. There should be exceptions considered
for areas with no traffic warden to enforce the rules, where parking on certain
corners is constant, and where a potential hazard is sufficient to justify the
installing of double yellow lines. With no Garda resources available and
no traffic wardens in most areas it is not possible to monitor parking on
corners. The current policy plays a part in failing to prevent dangerous
parking offences. Supplying double yellow lines is a visual aid that acts as a
deterrent to offenders.” (Report attached)
Councillor Ciarán O’Moore said double yellow lines are required at
certain corners, such as near schools. Mr Dick Brady, Assistant Chief
Executive, said that the City Council would work with An Garda
Síochana to improve enforcement of existing Regulations, where it is
already illegal to park on corners. Motion noted.
11. Motion in the name of Councillor Ciarán Cuffe:
"That the city's HGV cordon be reviewed with a view to expanding the
restriction of 4-axle vehicles, particularly in the light of changes in the city in
recent times including the city’s ownership of the Tom Clarke (East-Link)
Bridge; the opening of the Sam Beckett Bridge; continued concerns around
bridge strikes by HGVs; revisions to speed limits in the city, and the imminent
completion of the Luas Cross-City project.”
Mr Brendan O’Brien, acting Executive Manager (Traffic), said that 4-axle
vehicles will be reviewed in next year’s revision and upgrade of the HGV
permit system. Motion Agreed.
Cllr Ciarán Cuffe
Chairperson,
27th September, 2017

Page 6

Page 7

Page 8

Page 9

Item No. 7

Report to Chairperson and Members
of the Transportation Strategic Policy Committee

Recommended changes to the procedure for the removal of Abandoned Bicycles
within the Dublin City Council jurisdiction

Alec Dundon,
Executive Engineer,
Environment and Transportation Department

February 2018

Page 11

Introduction
In February 2016 an Abandoned Bicycle Procedure was adopted by the Transportation
Strategic Policy Committee aimed at freeing up valuable on-street cycle parking by removing
bicycles that had clearly been abandoned. There continues to be strong demand for onstreet cycle parking within the city centre and this is predicted to rise significantly in the
coming months with the introduction of stationless bike sharing. This report reviews the
current procedure and recommends a number of changes to improve its effectiveness.
Existing Procedure for the Removal of Abandoned Bicycles:
The existing procedures for the removal of abandoned bicycles are coordinated on an area
wide basis by the Public Domain Enforcement Officers with the assistance of Traffic Officers
from the Environment and Transportation Department.
Essentially bicycles that are identified as potentially abandoned are initially monitored for two
weeks, than tagged as abandoned and if they are still in the same location after a further two
weeks the bicycles are removed. The bicycles are kept for a further four weeks in secure
storage during which time the owner can reclaim their bicycle.
Review of Current Procedure:
The current procedure has provided the Public Domain Officers with an agreed method for
removing abandoned bicycles. In 2016, a total of 216 bicycles (including partial frames) were
removed from the south-east and central area with a further 92 bicycles removed from these
areas in 2017. Efforts to remove abandoned bicycles have been concentrated in these areas
as this is where the demand for cycle parking is greatest.
The procedure has operated smoothly with only a handful of cases reported where owners
have sought to recover bicycles or frames that were removed as abandoned. In all cases the
bicycles have been returned to their owners.
It is however felt that the current procedure is a little overcautious and could be improved by
making the following changes.

Proposed Changes
1) In cases where bicycles are in extremely poor condition and pose an immediate
hazard to the general public it is proposed that the general abandoned bicycle
procedure should not apply. In these exceptional cases it is recommended that the
bicycles are removed immediately with no requirements to either tag or place the
bicycles in storage.
2) It is proposed that the definition of an abandoned bicycle should be revised to state
that:

Page 12

An abandoned bicycle is defined as a bicycle located on a public street or in a public
car park that would appear, due to its general poor condition, to have been
abandoned by its owner.
Explanation:
The earlier definition of an abandoned bicycle as a bicycle that would appear to have
been in the same location unmoved for a period of more than 3 months is
considered over-cautious and too specific.
3) It is proposed to remove the requirement to initially monitor a bicycle for two weeks
before tagging it as abandoned.
Explanation:
The current procedure requires that once an official suspects a bike is abandoned
they must monitor it for two weeks before tagging it as abandoned. It was intended
that this requirement would help avoid situations where bicycles that hadn’t been
abandoned were tagged in error. However, during the two years since this procedure
has been in operation, DCC Officials have become accustomed to recognising
abandoned bicycles and it is considered that this requirement is no longer needed.
As long as DCC Officials continue to exercise caution when tagging bicycles it is
considered unnecessary to monitor the bikes for two weeks beforehand.
4) It is proposed to alter the text on the official abandoned bicycle tag as shown below:
Existing Tag:

New Tag:

Page 13

Explanation:
The original text on the tag ensured that no bicycles were removed unless the tag
was in place and therefore the owner was given two weeks clear notification of
DCC’s intention to remove the bicycle. It sought to avoid a scenario where the tag
became separated from the bicycle before the owner had a chance to read it.
However this method has proved cumbersome as in some cases the tags were
removed from bicycles that were clearly abandoned. In these cases the DCC
Officials had to restart the tagging procedure.
In the vast majority of cases where bicycles have been tagged as abandoned and
removed there has been no attempt by the owners to recover them. This is due in
part to the judgement shown by the DCC officials in only tagging bicycles showing
obvious signs that they have been abandoned and also the fact that once a bicycle
deteriorates past a certain stage it would appear that most owners have little interest
in them.
Taking these facts into consideration it is now thought that the original text was
unnecessarily cautious.
The proposed new tag offers greater clarity and will allow for a more efficient use of
Dublin City Council resources with abandoned bicycles being removed in a shorter
timeframe. Any owner who fails to notice that their bicycle has been tagged as
abandoned will still have four weeks to contact the council and recover their bicycle
should they wish.
5) When a lock is cut to remove an abandoned bicycle it is proposed to keep the cut
lock with the bicycle when it is moved to the secure storage.
Explanation:
All bicycles in reasonable condition that are removed as abandoned are kept in
secure storage for a holding period of 4 weeks. During that time the owner can
reclaim their bicycle by contacting the relevant official from the area where the
bicycle was parked. The owner is required to establish ownership. One simple
method of doing this is to produce the key that opens the lock.

Summary:
It is recommended that the current procedure for dealing with abandoned bicycle is
revised as follows:
1) The current procedure will not apply to abandoned bicycles that are in extremely
poor condition and pose an immediate hazard to the general public. There will be
no requirement to tag or store these bicycles and instead they will be removed as
soon as possible and disposed of.
2) The current definition of an abandoned bicycle is to be revised to state that:

Page 14

An abandoned bicycle is defined as a bicycle located on a public street or in a
public car park that would appear, due to it’s general poor condition, to have been
abandoned by its owner.
3) There will no longer be a requirement to initially monitor a bicycle for 2 weeks
before tagging it as abandoned.
4) If a bicycle is still in the same location two weeks after the bicycle has been
tagged it will be removed (regardless of whether the original tag is present or
not).
5) Any locks that are cut when removing an abandoned bicycle will be kept with the
bicycle during the 4 week holding period.

It is proposed to monitor this revised procedure over the following 12 months and
report back to the Transportation Strategic Policy Committee on its operation in early
2019.
It is intended to publish the procedure and relevant contact details on the dublincity.ie
website.
Furthermore the Gardaí and the Dublin Cycling Campaign will be informed of the
procedure.
The full revised procedure is attached to this report for information.

Page 15

Revised Procedure for the Removal of Abandoned Bicycles:
1. This procedure does not apply to abandoned bicycles that are in extremely poor
condition and pose an immediate hazard to the general public. There will be no
requirement to tag or store these bicycles and instead they will be removed as soon
as possible and disposed of.
2. For the purpose of this procedure an abandoned bicycle is defined as a bicycle
located on a public street or in a public car park that would appear, due to it’s general
poor condition, to have been abandoned by its owner.
3. The removal of abandoned bicycles is to continue to be managed on an area basis
by the Public Domain Enforcement Officers with the assistance of the Environment
and Transportation Department. The exception is the management of the removal of
abandoned bicycles from Drury Street Car Park which will be managed by the Traffic
Planning Section.
4. Abandoned bicycles will usually be identified by their condition. Flat tyres on both
front and back wheels, buckled or missing wheels, damaged frames or heavily rusted
chains and sprockets will be taken as indications that the bicycle has been
abandoned.
5. Dublin City Council officials will exercise caution when determining that a bicycle is
abandoned.
6. Once a council official has determined that a bicycle is abandoned, an Abandoned
Bicycle Tag will be placed on the bicycle. This tag (see photograph below) is a
weatherproof, single-use luggage style tag which allows the council official to insert a
date after which the bicycle will be removed.
The council official will make a note of the location of the potentially abandoned
bicycle, take a photographic record and arrange a follow up inspection after the two
weeks period has elapsed.

Page 16

7. If the bicycle remains in the same location Dublin City Council will take the necessary
steps to remove the bicycle. Before the bicycle is removed a photographic record of
the condition of the bicycle will be taken. The lock(s) will then be cut and the bicycle
removed. The cut lock will be kept with the abandoned bike as it can potentially be
used to establish ownership should the bicycle be reclaimed at a later stage. The
owner would be required to produce a key that opens the lock.
8. All bicycles that are in reasonable condition will be kept in secure storage for a
holding period of 4 weeks. During that time the owner will be able to reclaim their
bicycle by contacting the relevant official from the area where the bicycle was parked
(see contact details below).The owner will be required to provide proof of ownership
or produce the key that opens the lock that secured the bicycle. No compensation will
be payable to the owner for any inconvenience associated with the actions of Dublin
City Council in removing the bicycle.
9. Once the holding period has expired, the bicycles, depending on their condition, will
be donated to charity, recycled or dumped.

Contact Details:
Central Area:
South East Area:
South Central Area
North West Area
North Central Area
Drury Street Car Park

John McPartlan – Public Domain Enforcement Officer
Kevin O’Sullivan- Public Domain Enforcement Officer
TBC
- Public Domain Enforcement Officer
Patrick Smith - Public Domain Enforcement Officer
Richard Cleary- Public Domain Enforcement Officer
Alec Dundon – Executive Engineer

Page 17

222 5303
222 2499
222 5200
222 5496
222 8866
222 2706

Operation and Monitoring of Procedure

It is intended to only use this procedure to remove bicycles that have clearly been
abandoned and therefore it is considered unlikely that many owners will seek to recover their
bicycles.
However in order to assist owners who may seek to recover bicycles it is intended to publish
the procedure and relevant contact details on the dublincity.ie website.
Furthermore the Gardaí and the Dublin Cycling Campaign will be informed of the procedure.

Page 18

Item No. 8

Report to the Chairperson and Members
of the Transportation
Strategic Policy Committee
Pedestrian facilities improvements at St Margaret’s Road/McKee Avenue and
Jamestown Road/Melville Road roundabouts – issue regarding funding referred to the
Transportation SPC by the North West Area Committee
The North West Area Committee agreed at its meeting of 21st November, 2017, to refer the
Motion below and the attached report to the Finance Strategic Policy Committee and to the
Transportation Strategic Policy Committee:
“Motion in the name of Councillor Paul McAuliffe
The North West area agree to provide additional pedestrian facilities at the Roundabouts on
Jamestown Road and St Margaret’s Road/McKee Avenue.
Report
A report will be presented to the North West Area Committee on this topic at the North West
Area Meeting scheduled for 21st November, 2017.
Contact: Christopher K Manzira, A/Senior Engineer
Tel:
222 2500
Email:
christopher.manzira@dublincity.ie
Following discussion with the City Council’s Head of Finance, the Chairperson of the
Finance SPC, Councillor R. McGinley, “asked that the North West Committee be advised
that his response, as Chair of the Finance SPC Committee, is that this is a matter for the
North West Area Committee to consider either as part of its discretionary fund allocation or
to seek information from the Environment and Transportation Department as to whether this
project is included in the Capital Programme 2018 to 2020.”
A copy of the original report submitted to the North West Area Committee is attached.

Page 19

To the Chairperson and Members of the
North West Area Committee
Meeting: 21st November 2017
Item No: 13

Pedestrian Facilities Improvements St. Margaret’s Road/McKee Avenue and
Jamestown Road/Melville Road Roundabouts

1
2

1.0
Background
Environment and transportation department has received representations requesting for the
provision of improved pedestrian facilities at St. Margaret’s Road/McKee Avenue
Roundabout (Lidl Roundabout see Figure 1 below) and Jamestown Road/Melville Road
Roundabout (see Figure 2 below).

Page 21

Figure 1 - St. Margaret’s Road/McKee Avenue Roundabout

Figure 2 - Jamestown Road/Melville Road Roundabout
2.0

St. Margaret’s Road/McKee Avenue Roundabout

2.1

Background

Concerns were raised by the public as part of the public consultation process of the
Finglas Village Improvement Scheme. Following the public consultation process it was
recommended that the Lidl Roundabout be upgraded.
The following were the main issues raised:
 Safety,
 A pedestrian crossing at Lidl, McKee Avenue is essential.

Page 22

The roundabout is sited at a high traffic volume location and incorporates a shopping centre
entrance/exit. There is also a concern of fast approach speeds to the roundabout and
there are no existing pedestrian facilities.
2.2

Proposal

Dublin City Council appointed a consultant to prepare alternative design options. The
Preliminary design proposals for the upgrading of the Lidl Roundabout included the
evaluation of alternative options.
Two options were developed for the preliminary design of St. Margaret’s roundabout, the first
was based on a signalised junction and the second included the relocation of the roundabout
incorporating a pedestrian crossing. The preferred option subsequently brought to Detail
Design consists of an upgrade of the roundabout including the realignment of St. Margaret’s
road and McKee Avenue approaches and the provision of signalised pedestrian crossings
on two arms of the roundabout (see Figure 3 below)

Figure 3 – Proposed Scheme Design
2.3
Implementation
The proposed upgrade will require the realignment and reinstatement of existing footpaths
along the route as well as kerb and carriageway reinstatement at areas which require
realignment.

The realignment of St. Margaret’s roundabout will include, but not be limited to,
the following items of works:
 the construction of two signalised pedestrian crossings for pedestrians and the



mobility impaired on the Western and Eastern Arms of the Lidl Roundabout,
Widening of footpaths along the frontage of Lidl; this will result in the reduction of the
St. Margaret’s Road approaches to the roundabout.
It would also be necessary to resurface the roundabout and approach arms.

2.4
Cost
It is estimated that it will cost circa €500k to implement.

Page 23

3.0

Jamestown Road/Melville Road Roundabout

3.1
Background
The Jamestown Road roundabout is at the intersection of Jamestown Road, Melville Road
and Poppintree Park Lane straddling the jurisdictions of Fingal County Council and Dublin
City Council.
The NTA’s Greater Dublin Area Cycle Network Plan defines Jamestown Road (southern
arm), Melville Road and Poppintree Park Lane as secondary and Jamestown Road (northern
arm) as a feeder route.
Observations at the roundabout indicate that;
 High traffic volumes exist at peak hours. Dominant destination appears towards
Finglas village from the Melville Road arm in the morning peak,
 Significant use by pedestrians and cyclists. Greatest crossing demand appears to be
across the southern and eastern arms of the roundabout. Opportunity to cross is
dependent on sufficient breaks in traffic and/or courtesy of drivers, and,
 Significant use of roundabout by HGV.
There are no dedicated crossing facilities for vulnerable road users at the roundabout. Fingal
County Council installed a Toucan crossing along Melville Road beside the entrance to
Melville estate and approximately 200m from the roundabout. Melville Road has segregated
one-way cycle tracks that terminate at the roundabout. The northern arm of the roundabout
(Jamestown Road) has a mix of cycle lanes and cycle tracks that terminate in advance of the
roundabout.
3.2
Proposal
From the site observations it is recommended that an initial controlled crossing for
vulnerable road users be installed on the southern arm of the roundabout. This is shown
indicatively on Figure 4 and Figure 5.

Figure 4 – Proposed Scheme Design
3.3
Cost
A high level cost estimate for the implementation of such a facility is likely to be in the region
of €200k. The development of a scheme proposal can only commence with the identification,
and securing, of adequate funding and resources.

Page 24

Figure 5: Installation of crossing facility on southern arm shown as red dashed line.
Recently installed crossing at Melville Way entrance show as green solid line. Blue
dot line indicates route that will be available to vulnerable road users, along existing
facilities, to reach proposed new crossing location and access nearby school, pitch
and residential areas. Positions are Indicative only.

4.0
Funding
These schemes would not be considered priority projects under the Sustainable Traffic
Management Grants programme. It is recommended that consideration be given to use Area
Discretionary funding.

Christopher K. Manzira
A/Senior Engineer

Page 25

Item No. 9
Report to the Chairperson and Members
of the Transportation
Strategic Policy Committee
The following item was submitted by Councillor Dermot Lacey for the consideration of the
Transportation SPC:

“Item for Transportation SPC

That this Committee would consider the issues and ideas contained in the email attachment
set out below:
Dermot Lacey

There are 10's of thousands of elderly people from all over the country who do not and will
not come into the city centre, ever, just like my mother. They would like come into “Town”
and spend money in the city centre, in the shops, restaurants, hotels and other
entertainment businesses but they can't. They go elsewhere and Dublin City Centre is at a
loss. In the current traffic debate there is plenty of talk about cyclists. Not once have I heard
anyone bring elderly access to the city centre into that same debate. Where are the
wheelchair parking points? The council have looked after cyclists by supplying 1500
bicycles. There is not one wheelchair for the elderly to use to get around on. Why can't we
have “Dublin Chairs” similar to Dublin Bikes? One day all of us will be the elderly I am now
advocating for and now is the time to start to plan for our future. After all the likes of my
mother paid her taxes to build the city we now have and she is being excluded. There are
many things that could be done to help elderly people to improve their quality of city living.
Electric golf style carts for ferrying people to side streets is an example, like a mini taxi
service for the elderly. Rickshaws are allowed to run around why not elderly transport,
regulated of course.”

Mary Hussey,
Senior Engineer,
City Centre Projects
January, 2018

Page 27

Cycling & Walking Sub-Committee
20th September 2017

Attendance:

Cllr Ciarán Cuff, Chair of Cycling & Walking Sub Committee
Sarah Scannell, Cycling & Walking Promotion Officer
Cllr Paddy Smyth
Kieran Ryan, Dublin Cycling Campaign
Jane Hackett, An Taisce
Garda William Geraghty, An Gárda Síochána
David Timoney, Dublin Cycling Campaign
Orlaith Maguire, RSA

Apologies:

Barbara Connolly, Cycling Ireland
Colm Ryder, Dublin Cycling Campaign
Ally Menary, An Tasice.

________________________________________________________________________
1. Minutes of Cycle & Walking Sub – Committee meeting held on 1st March 2017
May 2017 - Minutes agreed.
Request for items dropped from the agenda to be re added - Cycle Parking Updates.
Santry River Greenway Report to be circulated to members.

2. Presentation from David Timoney, Dublin Cycling Campaign
The reported number of thefts from An Garda Síochána figures versus CSO figures
indicate that bicycle theft is three times higher than reported. In 2015 Dublin had 4,600
reported thefts; the figure is more likely 13,800. Based on these figures and with a 1 in 6
statistic of people ceasing to cycle after theft this results in 2,300 people discontinuing
cycling on a yearly basis.
Pearse St Garda station are not seeing an organised pattern in bike theft arrests.
Tracking devices are restricted under the Surveillance Act. AGS do not record data on
the types of bikes stolen, makes etc. only the estimated value. AGS have engaged with
online traders ‘Done Deal’ etc regarding suspicious sellers, and they have a good line of
communication with these traders.

1
Page 29

To report a theft under €500.00 there is a link online
http://garda.ie/Controller.aspx?Page=4002
Issue of over 2000 cyclists being lost a year due to theft needs to be looked at in more
detail in terms of the impacts on the environment and pollution. It’s estimated that €6
million is lost to the economy via bike theft each year.

3. Projects List
Frustration on how pace projects are moving, whether due consultation delay, or
resources and funding issues.
Calls for discussion and informal consultation around ‘Planning for Real’. Often
suspicions around DCC objectives, it needs to be clearly communicated that it fits into
wider strategies and plans for the city in a way that is understood by everyone. Cllr Cuffe
to discuss at Corporate Policy Group level.
Harold’s Cross pedestrian loop – Jane Hackett An Taisce have concerns that this was
not complete in terms of the painting, and the islands that were removed. The committee
requests for this to be finished ASAP.
Work on North Quays commended – great improvement on bus times and inadvertently
on cycling space. Request for a report for the month of September, to include snapshots
of visuals, data, time saved, car waiting times etc.
Request for new projects to be added to the list, in particular updates to the Portobello to
Inchicore section of the canal, Fitzwilliam Place Cycle Way (Parking protected cycle
lane) and Merrion Street. Cllr Paddy Smyth noted a report was made to the South East
Area meeting.

4. Station-less Bike Scheme
Noted

5. Hike it, Bike it, Like it, Dublin!
Noted

6. Public Realm
Request for updates to be given in the same format as the cycle projects update.

2
Page 30

7. Bike Week 2017 review
Request for streets to be closed off during bike week. In the UK there is a statutory
application that communities can make to have their streets closed off to traffic for
community events. We do not have a similar system here and it is difficult and costly for
people to apply to have streets closed off. Community in Phibsboro recently helped
PhisFest which was extremely successful. DCC need to look at making it easier for
communities to hold events in their areas.

8. Pedestrian Crossing/ITS
Noted

9. Quick Wins (Christopher Manzira verbal update)
Sarah to follow up with an update from Cycling Projects. Chair would like to see further
roll out of cycle logos in shared bus lanes. Chair also suggested that advanced stop
lanes be standard for cyclists. In many other countries cyclists get a lead start by the
cycle lights going green for cyclists 5 seconds or so before cars get the green light. This
gives a safe take off for cyclists. Could DCC trial similar here?

10. May Counts
May counts for 2016 and 2017 to be shared. Sarah to follow up with Cycling Projects.
Chair suggested info graphics be created by the data and it shared to show impact. It
would be interesting to do a comparison on car numbers along the canal since the cycle
way introduction to indicate if there has or hasn’t been a reduction.

11. Velo City 2019
Report to be circulated to the committee once approved by the ECF. Request for
mandatory cycle lanes to be made throughout the city for Velo-City 2019 and to get rid of
transient lanes. Better enforcement of illegally parked vehicles needed. We need to
encourage first time cyclists and we need mandatory cycle lanes for this. We need more
focal points for main routes of cycling into the city. Request to start with one North/South
axis and one East/West axis to begin with.

3
Page 31

12. Cycle Right
An Taisce requests to extend the training further to 3rd and 4th class children. Evidence to
show that the earlier children pick up the necessary skills and training the more benefits
that are received from the training.

13. The Dutch Reach Method
Committee agreed the Dutch Reach method is an extremely useful method to promote
and should be further incorporated to driving training for all types of vehicles. This should
be incorporated at a statutory level. There are also secondary benefits in that it builds an
awareness of what cyclists need to be aware of when cycling. It gives an understanding
as to why cyclists position themselves out when cycling by cars and parked cars.
Sarah to share with Orlaith in RSA.

14. AOB
30kph progress report – Andy Walsh is to give an update to the Transportation SPC.
Chair mentioned that surveys are currently ongoing regarding impact of the scheme and
solutions will be recommended based on its findings.
Port Tunnel – Request for data on the average speed of vehicles in the Port Tunnel now
that speeds are being monitored. What are the effects/benefits of monitoring?
Luas cross city –Serious concerns about issues of safety in areas where cyclists are
expected to share with Luas and Bus. Conflicts need to be addressed; there has been a
cyclist tram line fatality in Edinburgh. The committee requests that someone from Luas
Cross City to give a full update at the next meeting.
The committee requests a report from Christopher Manzira on Quiet ways.
Request for various representations of Environment and Engineering to be present at all
meetings. Chair states if necessary people are not present he will have to move to
amalgamate the Cycling and Walking subcommittee with the Transportation SPC.

4
Page 32

Item No. 11
Motion submitted by Fine Gael Group:
“This committee recommends that the current DUBLIN CITY COUNCIL PARKING
CONTROL BYE-LAWS 2014, be amended as follows.
A) Two additional designations be included in the bye-laws
1. “Very heavy demand road” means a residential parking permit road where the
number of residents parking permits that have been issued for the road exceeds
75% of the total number of residential parking permit bays on the road.
2. “Extremely heavy demand road” means a residential parking permit road where
the number of residents parking permits that have been issued for the road
exceeds 85% of the total number of residential parking permit bays on the road.

B)

That the following regulations apply to the above designations;

1. Where the building, regardless of the number of sub-units therein, is on a ‘very
heavy demand road’, the maximum number of residents in that building who may
concurrently hold a resident’s parking permit shall be 2.
2. Where the building, regardless of the number of sub-units therein, is on a
‘extremely heavy demand road’, the maximum number of residents in that
building who may concurrently hold a resident’s parking permit shall be 1.

C) That these amendments to the Bye-Laws, would apply but without prejudice to
the rights of existing permit holders in that house/building to renew their parking
permits, and that non-renewal of permits by existing holders where the permit
quota exceeds the level as per paragraph (B) will result in the extinguishment of
an automatic entitlement for a new applicant to a permit for that house/unit.”

Page 33

